GREATER DOVER AREA RESOURCE GUIDE

Shelters & Services for Men, Women, Families in Need

Dover Public Library

With contributions by Wesley United Methodist Church

January 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Centralized Intake	3
Emergency Numbers	3
Shelter(s)	4
Day-Time Resources	5
Where to Go for a Meal	6
Food Pantries	7
Food Assistance	8
Health Screenings / Medical Assistance	8
Case Management	9
Addiction Treatment / Mental Health / Counseling	10
Disability Assistance	11
Veterans' Services	11
Legal & Immigration Assistance	11
Assistance with Bills	12
Clothing Closets	13
Household Items	13
Housing Assistance	14
Job Help	14
Workshops/Educational Services/Tutoring	15
Child Care	16
After School Programs	16
Summer Camps for Children	17
Foster Care Services	18
Appendix I: AA Meeting List	19
Appendix II: NA Meeting List	22
Appendix III: AL-Anon Meeting List	24

CENTRALIZED INTAKE

For Shelter Referral, call Centralized Intake at

1 (833) 346-3233

Or TEXT

Your name, family size and location to

1 (833) FIND BED

Or email

Intake@housing alliancede.org

EMERGENCY NUMBERS

Emergency: 9-1-1

Child Protective Services: 1 (800) 292-9582

Code Purple: 1 (833) 346-3233

Delaware Aging and Disability Resource Center: 1 (800) 223-9074

Delaware Help Line: 1 (800) 464-4357 (Information & Referral to all State Agencies)

Delaware State Police Camden/Wyoming Department: (302) 697-4454

Delaware State Police Dover Headquarters: (302) 739-5901

Dover Behavioral Health: (302) 741-0140

Domestic Violence: (302) 678-3886 (People's Place: Northern Kent County SAFE line) / (302) 422-8058

(People's Place SAFE line for Kent & Sussex) / (302) 422-8033 (People's Place – Turning Point)

Dover Police: (302) 736-7111

James W. Williams State Service Center: (302) 857-5000

Psychiatric Crisis/Substance Abuse Crisis Help: 1 (800) 345-6785

Rape Crisis: 1 (800) 262-9800 (Contact Lifeline)

SHELTER(S)

Code Purple

Addresses: Various locations (see below)
Contact: 1-(800) 733-6816 for Updates
Website: www.codepurplekentcounty.com

For: Men, Women, & Children

Services: Emergency shelter open when temperatures at night go below 32 degrees

Hours: 5:00 PM until 7:00 AM the next day

Meals: Dinner & breakfast provided

Code Purple Shelters for Men:

- Mt. Carmel Church (117 N. West Street, Dover)

- Dover Presbyterian Church (54 S. State Street, Dover)

- Peoples Church (Dover)

- Wyoming Methodist Church (Dover)

- Centennial Church (Smyrna)

Code Purple Shelters for Women & Children:

- Christ Church (523 South State Street, Dover)

- Maranatha Life Changing Church (1235 E. Division St., Dover)

PLEASE CALL 1 (833) 346-3233 FOR INTAKE & SHELTER REFERRAL

Dover Interfaith Mission for Housing

Address: 684 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 736-3600

For: Adult Men (including ex-offenders & sex offenders)

Services: Laundry & Shower (homeless only)

Additional services provided by Interfaith Mission for Housing Resource Center

Restrictions: Case by case

Hours: 24 hours / 7 days a week

Meals: Breakfast/Dinner for those living there

Lunch on Sunday, Thursday, Friday

1st State Community Action Agency: Strong Community Initiative

Address: 655 S. Bay Rd., Dover **Phone:** (302) 674-1355

Website: https://www.firststatecaa.org

Services in Kent County:

Emergency services: For low income families needing assistance with utility bills and past due

rent/mortgage. Can offer emergency shelter in cases of domestic violence or fire.

Promoting Safe and Stables Families program: Offers one on one counseling to help with

family stress & to eliminate abuse. Also includes case management and assistance with one bill

after the counseling is complete.

Community Development: Includes a variety of projects that strengthen neighborhoods.

The Shepherd Place

Address: 1362 South Governor's Avenue, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-1909

For: Women; Women with Children

Men with Children Laundry and Shower

Services: Laundry and Shower

Workshops for finances & legal matters Housing & employment resources No single men; men must have children

Hours: 24 hours / 7 days a week **Meals:** Three meals a day

Whatcoat Shelter

Restrictions:

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

For: Single Men, Single Women & Families

Services: Shower

Counseling resources Housing assistance

Transitional housing available on case-by-case basis

Restrictions: 45 day stay maximum (90 days for veterans)

No sex offenders

Hours: 24 hours / 7 days a week Meals: Three meals each day

Principal Contact: Denise Jackson, Program Director

3 Vera Way, Dover (302) 734-0319 x11

DAY-TIME RESOURCES

ASSIST Benefits

Address: Dover Public Library, 35 Loockerman Plaza, Dover

Hours: Tuesdays, 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM

Website: http://delawarelibraries.org/socialworkers

Services: The DHSS Community Partner Support Unit helps with the ASSIST application process;

applying for food benefits; Medicaid; long-term nursing care; childcare; home energy assistance; learning about other DHSS agencies and benefits; referrals to partner

organizations; employment & training.

Dover Interfaith Mission for Housing Resource Center

Address: 684 G Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 883-2166

For: Men, Women & Children Services: Laundry & Shower

Job Help

Case Management Bible Studies

Restrictions: Case by case

Space available for only 20-30 people

Hours: Monday – Thursday, 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM (open Fridays 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM in winter); the

second Saturday monthly 9:00 AM-12:00 PM

Meals: No meals available

Hopes & Dreams

Address: 621 West Division Street, Dover **Phone:** (302) 672-0425, (302) 399-5548

Director: Tricia Hill

Hours: Mondays-Fridays, 7:30 AM-3:30 PM

Services: Job assistance; peer support services; linkages to resources & services. Laundry facilities;

mailing address, recreational activities; computers & Wi-Fi access. For men & women over 18

years old.

WHERE TO GO FOR A MEAL

Mondays

Calvary Baptist Church (11:30 AM - 12:30 PM)

Address: 410 Fulton Street (Fulton & Queen Streets)

Phone: (302) 736-6554 **When:** Mid January – Mid May

Salvation Army (11:30 AM – 12:15 PM) Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

When: Monday during Summer Only

Whatcoat United Methodist Church (4:30 - 6:00 PM)

Address: 341 Saulsbury Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-9505

Whatcoat Shelter (Before 7:00 PM)

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

Tuesdays

Mt. Zion AME Church (11:30 AM – 1:00 PM)
Address: 101 North Queen Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9478

When: Closed August through Mid-September and between Christmas and the week after New Year's

Day

Whatcoat Shelter (Before 7:00 PM)

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

Wednesdays

Salvation Army (11:30 AM – 12:15 PM) Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

Whatcoat Shelter (Before 7:00 PM)

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

Thursdays

Salvation Army (11:30 AM – 12:15 PM) Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

Whatcoat Shelter (Before 7:00 PM)

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

Fridays

Salvation Army (11:30 AM – 12:15 PM) Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

Whatcoat Shelter (Before 7:00 PM)

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

Saturdays

Salvation Army (11:30 AM – 12:15 PM) Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

When: Fall, Winter, Spring ONLY – no Saturdays during Summer

Whatcoat Shelter (Before 7:00 PM)

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

FOOD PANTRIES

First Baptist Church

Address: 301 Walker Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-1980

When: Tuesdays & Thursdays, 1:30 - 2:00 PM

Restrictions: Referral Needed from James Williams State Service Center. If individual cannot make times

listed, they can call and arrange a different time.

Holy Cross Church/Kent Ecumenical Food & Crisis

Address: 631 State Street, Dover

Phone: Samaritan Outreach Program: (302) 346-2646

When: Mondays & Wednesdays, 2:00-3:30 PM

Restrictions: Referral Needed from Samaritan Outreach Program or the Williams State Service Center. Need

a Photo ID. Need to know if person is homeless. They do not deliver food.

Whatcoat United Methodist Church

Address: 341 Saulsbury Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-9505

When: Mondays, 4:30-6:00 PM & Wednesdays, 10:00 AM-12:00 PM

Maranatha Life Changing Church

Address: 1235 E Division St, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-9510

When: M-F 1:00-3:00 PM; Sat 9:00-11:00 AM; Sun 10:00 AM-2:00 PM. Food is often shared during

services on Wednesdays & Sundays. Food & clothing pantries can also be accessed during

regular service hours or special events at MLCC.

FOOD ASSISTANCE

Catholic Charities

Address: 2099 South DuPont Highway, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-1600

Hours: Every fourth Thursday of the month

Services: Provides a bag of groceries

Restrictions: Application for participation required, apply through Basic Needs.

Kent County Community Action

Address: 120 S. Governors Ave. #120 A, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-1949

Hours: 12:00 – 2:00 PM unless otherwise noted.

Services: One bag of groceries per family, twice a month. Must provide ID & fill out registration to receive

groceries. Bring bags for groceries.

HEALTH SCREENINGS / MEDICAL ASSISTANCE

Delaware Cancer Treatment Program

Phone: 1 (800) 996-9969 or call 211

Services: Provide financial assistance to uninsured/low income Delaware residents diagnosed with

cancer.

Nemours Children's Health System

Phone: (844) 551-2065

Services: Pediatrics. Has financial counselors on site. If you can't afford health insurance & don't qualify

for state/federal programs, you can apply for the Nemours Financial Assistance Program.

https://www.nemours.org/patientfamily/financialassistance.html

Nemours Health Clinic

Address: 915 N. DuPont Blvd., Milford

Phone: (302) 422-4559

Services: Children, Seniors, Dental

Planned Parenthood

Address: 805 S. Governors Ave, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-5200

Website: www.planned parenthood.org

Services: Planned Parenthood is one of the nation's leading providers of high-quality, affordable health

care, & the nation's largest provider of sex education. With or without insurance, you can always receive health care here. LANGUAGE & INTERPRETERS: English; Interpretation by telephone available for other languages. Please let us know if you need an interpreter when scheduling

your appointment.

Hours: Mondays & Wednesdays, 10:30 AM-7:00 PM; Thursdays, 8:00 AM-4:30 PM

Screening for Life

Phone: (302) 744-1040

Services: Variety of cancer screenings offered to uninsured/low-income Delaware residents.

Westside Family Healthcare

Address: 1020 Forrest Avenue, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-4622

Website: www.westsidehealth.org

Services: Provides family medical care to all ages including acute & chronic disease care, case

management& social services, family planning & reproductive care, health education & counseling, HIV counseling, testing & treatment; immunizations, laboratory services, low cost

medications, physical examinations, foot care, prenatal & maternity care, dental care,

behavioral health care, preventive care, 24-hour physician on-call emergency services, financial aid services and sliding fee scale for the uninsured. Staff is bilingual in English and Spanish,

accommodations for other languages are provided.

CASE MANAGEMENT

ASSIST Benefits

Address: Dover Public Library, 35 Loockerman Plaza, Dover

Hours: Tuesdays, 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM

Website: http://delawarelibraries.org/socialworkers

Services: The DHSS Community Partner Support Unit helps with the ASSIST application process;

applying for food benefits; Medicaid; long-term nursing care; childcare; home energy assistance; learning about other DHSS agencies and benefits; referrals to partner

organizations; employment & training.

Catholic Charities

Address: 2099 South DuPont Highway, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-1600 **For:** Men and Women

Services: Basic Needs Program – counseling, rental assistance, utility bill assistance

Restrictions: By appointment only on a first-come, first-come, first-serve basis

1st State Community Action Agency: Strong Community Initiative

Address: 655 S. Bay Rd., Dover

Phone: (302) 674-1355

Website: https://www.firststatecaa.org

Services in Kent County:

Emergency services: For low income families needing assistance with utility bills and past due

rent/mortgage. Can offer emergency shelter in cases of domestic violence or fire.

Promoting Safe and Stables Families program: Offers one on one counseling to help with family stress and to eliminate abuse. Also includes case management and assistance with one bill

after the counselling is complete.

Community Development: Includes a variety of projects that strengthen neighborhoods.

Interfaith Mission for Housing Resource Center

Address: 684 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 736-3600 **For:** Adult Men

Whatcoat Shelter

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

For: Men, Women, and Children **Restrictions:** Sex offenders prohibited

For more information: Contact Whatcoat Social Services at (302) 734-0319, dial ext. 11 for Program Director

Denise Jackson; Whatcoat Social Services office located at 3 Vera Way, Dover

ADDICTION TREATMENT / MENTAL HEALTH / COUNSELING

Brandywine Counseling & Community Services (BCCS)

Phone: (302)-656-2348

Website: www.brandywinecounseling.org

Services: Syringe services exchange program. Includes free HIV and Hep-C testing at all mobile sites.

Please call for locations & days.

Catholic Charities

Address: 2099 South DuPont Highway, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-1600

Restrictions: Call for an appointment; possible wait list

Connections CSP

Address: 1114 South DuPont Highway, Dover

Phone: (302) 672-9360

Services: Outpatient mental health care, addiction treatment & DUI treatment. Primary medical care for

clients receiving addiction or mental health treatment. Case management. For more information,

visit http://www.connectionscsp.org/locations/kent-county

Delaware Health and Social Services Mobile Crisis Intervention Services of Southern Delaware

Address: 700 Main Street, Ellendale

Phone: (800) 345-6785

Services: 24-hour telephone and Mobile Crisis response, mental health and substance use assessments,

after-hours psychiatric consultation, referral to community supports and services.

Dover Behavior Health System

Address: 725 Horsepond Rd., Dover

Phone: (302) 741-0140

Call for free, confidential assessment, (855) 609-9711

Services: Mental health treatment

Contact: Sharon Reber or Jean-Charles Constant

Dover Interfaith Mission

Address: 684 Forest St., Dover

Services: Wednesdays, 10:00 AM – 12:00 PM

Dover Interfaith Mission, John Wesley Center

Address: 217 W. Division St., Dover **Services**: Wednesdays, 1:00 – 3:00 PM

Hopes & Dreams

Address: 621 West Division Street, Dover **Phone:** (302) 672-0425; (302) 399-5548

Director: Tricia Hill

For: Men & Women over 18 years old **Hours:** Monday-Friday, 7:30 AM-3:30 PM

Whatcoat Shelter

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone (302) 734-8786

For: Men, Women & Children **Restrictions:** Sex offenders prohibited

For more information: Contact Whatcoat Social Services at (302) 734-0319, dial ext. 11 for Program Director

Denise Jackson

DISABILITY ASSISTANCE

Family Shade

Phone: (855) 755-7423

Services: A collaborative alliance of family partners & organizations

Independent Resources, Inc.

Address: 154 S. Governors Ave., Dover

Phone: (302) 735-4599
Website: https://iri delaware.org

Services: Information & referral; Independent & Living Skills Training; Individual & Systems advocacy;

peer counseling; transition assistance.

Kent County Interagency: The Ark of Delaware

Address: PO Box 562, Federal & Loockerman Sts., Dover

Phone: (302) 736-6140 or (302) 670-1216

Contact: Carol Reid Hall

Services: Advocate for Delawareans with intellectual & developmental disabilities & their families.

Programs include housing, outreach, employment, social & recreational.

VETERANS' SERVICES

Veterans Administration

Phone:

Connections Community Support Programs: (302) 518-5338 or (302) 734-0319 ext. 14

Crisis Line: (800) 273-8255 press 1

Housing: (877) 424-3838

Kent County: (302) 994-2511 ext. 2406

Centralized Intake for Veterans: (302) 654-0126 ext. 112

Veteran's Multi-Service Center

Address: 802 Silver Lake Blvd., Dover **Phone:** (302) 505-0489 or (302) 668-7331

Services: Employment training & assistance; housing assistance; women's veterans center; VMC thrift

store; benefits/entitlement assistance.

LEGAL & IMMIGRATION ASSISTANCE

APEX

Address: 655 S. Bay Rd., Dover **Phone:** (302) 233-6462

Contact: Andrew Duncan

Services: Assistance with gaining pardons & expungements

Catholic Charities

Address: 2099 South DuPont Highway, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-1600

Services: Provides assistance with immigration petitions. Call to make appointment.

Community Legal Aid (Dover Office)

Address: 840 Walker Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-8500 / Elder Law: (302) 674-3684 / Disabilities Program: (302) 674-8503

Website: http://www.declasi.org/

Services: CLASI provides free legal services to:

People with disabilities, as Delaware's Protection and Advocacy System

Older citizens (60 and over)

Victims of housing discrimination, under HUD's Fair Housing Initiative Program

People living in poverty Victims of domestic violence

Immigrant victims of crime, abuse and neglect

Legal Services Corporation of Delaware, Inc.

Address: Dover Office: 24A Hiawatha Lane, Dover

Phone: (302)-734-8820 **Website:** https://www.lscd.com/

Services: A non-profit law firm & community education organization assisting low-income families in Dover.

ASSISTANCE WITH BILLS

Assisted Home Performance / Energize Delaware Address: 500 W. Loockerman St., Dover

Phone: (302) 883-3048

Services: Comprehensive home energy assessment & energy efficient upgrades at reduced costs.

Catholic Charities

Address: 2099 South DuPont Highway

Phone: (302) 674-1600. For the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program and Delaware

Weatherization Assistance Program please call: 302-674-1782

Hours: 8:30 AM – 4:30 PM

Services: Assistance with utility bills: They offer two programs: Low Income Home Energy Assistance

Program-provides one time yearly subsidy for heating cost applied directly to the person's account; Delaware Weatherization Assistance Program-provides insulation to households that

qualify for the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program. Look under ${f CASE}$

MANAGEMENT for more information.

Restrictions: Ask for the Energy Assistance Program. Must come in to apply. Must be income eligible.

1st State Community Action: Strong Communities Initiative

Address: 655 S. Bay Rd., Dover **Phone:** (302) 674-1355

Website: https://www.firststatecaa.org

Services in Kent County:

Emergency services: For low income families needing assistance with utility bills and past due

rent/mortgage. Can offer emergency shelter in cases of domestic violence or fire.

Promoting Safe and Stables Families program: Offers one on one counseling to help with family stress and to eliminate abuse. Also includes case management and assistance with one bill

after the counselling is complete.

Community Development: Includes a variety of projects that strengthen neighborhoods.

IMA (Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of Dover & Vicinity)

Address: 211 West Division St., (in John Wesley Community Center), Dover

Phone: (302) 736-5300

For more information: www.imadover.org **Hours:** Thursdays 10:00 AM – 12:00 PM

James Williams State Service Center

Address: 805 River Rd, Dover **Phone**: (302) 857-5000

Services: Assistance with rent, lot rent, utilities, food & other needs.

Salvation Army

Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

Services: Past due rent/mortgage, first month rent, utility bills (excluding water), etc.

Restrictions: Case-by-case and by appointment only.

Smyrna State Service Center

Address: 200 S DuPont Blvd., Smyrna

Services: Assistance with rent, lot rent, utilities, food & other needs.

CLOTHING CLOSETS

Calvary Baptist Church

Address: 410 Fulton Street (Fulton & Queen Streets)

Phone: (302) 736-6554 **When:** 11:30 AM- 12:30 PM

Restrictions: Only takes place Mid-January through Mid-May (Coincides with the meals)

Wesley United Methodist Church

Address: North Street – behind building behind church – look for bright yellow sign

Phone: (302) 678-9626

Hours: Monday (9:00 – 11:00 AM) with referral & Friday (9:00 – 11:00 AM) with referral

Saturday, open to public to purchase, 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM

Whatcoat United Methodist Church

Address: 341 Saulsbury Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-9505 **When:** Mondays, 4:30- 6:00 PM

Maranatha Life Changing Church

Address: 1235 E Division St, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-9510

Hours: Weekly from 1:00 – 3:00 PM. Food & clothing pantries can also be accessed during regular

service hours or special events at MLCC.

HOUSEHOLD ITEMS

Caring Hearts, Helping Hands

Address: 1309 Ponderosa Drive, Magnolia Phone: (302) 698-1900 – call for application

Website: http://www.chhhde.org
E-mail: caringhearts@verizon.net
Hours: Tuesday, 10:00 AM - 2:00 PM

First & Third Saturday, 10:00 AM - 12:00 PM

First Wednesday, 4:30 - 6:30 PM

Services: Allows low-income families who are accepted into the program to shop monthly for gently used

clothing & household items. Families are sponsored for Christmas where children receive new

toys & clothes and also receive new gift on birthdays.

HOUSING ASSISTANCE

Delaware Housing Authority

Address: 18 The Green, Dover (302) 739-0271 Contact: Dan Shortridge

The Shepherd Place

Address: 1362 South Governor's Avenue, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-1909

For: Women with Children / Men with Children

Whatcoat Shelter

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786

For: Men, Women, and Children

Services: Housing assistance, with transitional housing available

Restrictions: Sex offenders prohibited

For more information: Contact Whatcoat Social Services at (302) 734-0319, dial ext. 11 for Program Director

Denise Jackson; Whatcoat Social Services office located at 3 Vera Way, Dover

JOB HELP

Dover Public Library Job Center

Address: 35 Loockerman Plaza, Dover

Phone: (302) 736-7030 **For:** all people

Hours: Monday, 9:00 AM – 1:00 PM

Wednesday, 12:00 – 7:00 PM Saturday, 10:00 AM-1:00 PM

Services: Provides help to anyone searching for employment; starting or expanding a business; or

studying course work online

1st State Community Action: Strong Communities Initiative

Address: 655 S. Bay Rd., Dover **Phone:** (302) 674-1355

Website: https://www.firststatecaa.org

Services: Emergency services: For low income families needing assistance with utility bills & past due

rent/mortgage.

Can offer emergency shelter in cases of domestic violence or fire.

Promoting Safe and Stables Families program: Offers one on one counseling to help with family stress and to eliminate abuse. Also includes case management and assistance with one bill

after the counselling is complete.

Community Development: Includes a variety of projects that strengthen neighborhoods.

Hopes & Dreams Peer Resource Center

Address: 621 W. Division Street, Dover **Phone:** (302) 672-0425; (302) 399-5548

Director: Tricia Hill

For: Men & Women over 18 years old **Hours:** Monday-Friday 7:30 AM – 3:30 PM

Interfaith Mission for Housing & Resource Center

Address: 684 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 883-2166 **For:** Adult Men

Services: Resume Center - Help with resume writing/job help

Hours: Monday-Thursday, 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM & the second Saturday monthly, 9:00 AM – 12:00 PM

Salvation Army

Address: 611 Forest St., Dover (302) 678-9551
Contact: Michele Chimieneti

The Shepherd Place

Address: 1362 South Governor's Avenue, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-1909

For: Women with Children / Men with Children

Services: Employment Resources

Whatcoat Shelter

Address: 381 State College Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 734-8786 **For:** Men & Women

Services: Assistance finding jobs

For more information: Contact Whatcoat Social Services at (302) 734-0319, dial ext. 11 for Program Director

Denise Jackson; Whatcoat Social Services office is located at 3 Vera Way, Dover

WORKSHOPS / EDUCATIONAL SERVICES / TUTORING

Dover Public Library

Address: 35 Loockerman Plaza, Dover

Phone: (302) 736-7030

Services: Weekly computer classes on Tuesdays at 1:00 PM. Call or stop by to register.

Maranatha Life Changing Church

Address: 1235 E Division St. Dover

Phone: (302) 734-9510

Services: Provides Spanish & English classes, a public community garden launching in 2019, and classes

on quitting smoking & vaping.

Mom's House

Address: 864 South State Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-8688

For: Low income single, widowed, or divorced men/women attending school full-time with children

ages 6 weeks to 4 years

Services: Computer center & tutoring

Requirements: Must pass preliminary background check; must volunteer three hours/week at center;

mandatory monthly parenting classes

NCALL

Address: 363 Saulsbury Road, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9400

Services: Specializes in affordable housing development, education & lending. Offers a variety of

educational classes on topics such as homeownership & foreclosure prevention.

The Shepherd Place

Address: 1362 South Governor's Avenue, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-1909

For: Single women; Women with Children; Men with Children

Services: Workshops for finances, legal matters

CHILDCARE

Mom's House

Address: 864 South State Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-8688

For: Single, Widowed or Divorced Men/ Women attending school full-time with children ages 6

weeks to 4 years

When: 7:30 AM-4:30 PM, Monday – Friday for 10 months a year (during normal school year).

Requirements: Must pass preliminary background check; must volunteer 3 hours/week at center; mandatory

monthly parenting classes

Kent County Community Action

Address: 120 S. Governors Ave. #120 A, Dover, DE 19904

Phone: (302) 678-1949

Hours: Monday – Friday, 7:00 AM – Midnight.

Services: Childcare. Accepts Purchase of Care. Come in or call for more information.

AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS

DEMCO (Delaware Multicultural & Civic Organization)

Address: 365 United Way, Dover

Phone: (302) 345-5308
Website: http://demcoinc.org
Contact: Dr. Linda Hackett

Services: Offers a variety of educational after-school programs

Sankofa Cultural Arts Center

Address: 39 S. West Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 883-2180

For: School aged children & special needs children. Please call for more information.

Hours: After school – 5:30 PM

Sankofa Cultural Arts Center – Arts Programs

Address: 39 S. West Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 883-2180

For: Sankofa offers a variety of arts programs year round for children. Music programs including

strings, guitar, and steel drum meet on Tuesdays. On Wednesdays & Saturdays there is a

African dance & drums program. Please call for more details.

Solid Rock Church Community Outreach Center

Address: 113 N. West St., Dover

Phone: (302) 734-1763 **Contact:** Rick Hardy

SUMMER CAMPS FOR CHILDREN

City of Dover Parks & Recreation Department

Address: John W. Pitts Recreation Center, 10 Electric Avenue, Dover

Phone: (302) 674-7541

Website: https://www.cityofdover.com/sports-camps

Services: For Her Basketball Camp for Children, ages 6-14; Activity Fee.

Soccer Camp for Children, ages 8-12; Activity Fee. Girls Lacrosse Camp for Girls, grades 3-12; Activity Fee. Volleyball Camp for Children, ages 11-14; Activity Fee. Hoopville Basketball Camp for Children, ages 8-14.

Hoopville Basketball Clinic for Children, ages 6 & 7; Activity Fee. Evening Soccer Camp for Children, ages 4 & 5; Activity Fee. Evening Soccer Camp for Children, ages 6 & 7; Activity Fee.

Field Hockey Camp for Children and Teenagers in grades K-12; Activity Fee.

Dover YMCA (Camp Voyager)

Address: 825 Kenton Rd, Dover

Phone: (302) 346-9622

Website: https://www.ymcade.org/dovercamp

Offers four camps:

Traditional Day Camp for Children, ages 6-12 years old, 5 year olds must have completed

kindergarten.

Specialty Camp for Children, ages 8-12 years old. Youth Sports Camp for Children, ages 7-12 years old Teens: Ages 15 & 16 can train to become camp counselors.

Camp Hours: Monday – Friday: 8:30 AM – 4:30 PM

Greater Dover Boys & Girls Club

Address: 1683 New Burton Rd., Dover

Director: Jacob J. Getty Jr. **Phone:** (302) 678-5182

Website: https://www.bgclubs.org/locations/greater-dover-boys-girls-club

Services: Summer camp for children ages 3-12 years old

Registration for Summer Camp opens in February for current parents & in March for new

parents.

Salvation Army

Address: 611 Forest Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 678-9551

Restrictions: Summer camp offered in the Poconos. Summer camp not offered in Dover. Please call (302)

678-9551 for more information.

Sankofa Cultural Arts Center

Address: 39 S. West Street, Dover

Phone: (302) 883-2180 Days: Mondays – Thursdays

For: Out of School program for school aged children. Sankofa's program focuses on weekly

educational themes such as arts, cooking, IT, etc. Please call for more information.

FOSTER CARE SERVICES

The Elizabeth W. Murphey School

Address: 42 Kings Hwy, E., Dover

Phone: (302) 734-7478

Services: Everyday living; educational; medical & counseling; health & recreational

People's Place Girls Group Home

Address: 1131 Airport Rd., Milford

Phone: (302) 422-8033 or (302) 424-3580 **Contact:** Kandis Lebron or Janet Berry

Services: Home-like environment for abused/neglected girls in the foster care system, ages 13-17

Appendix I: AA Groups (Alcoholics Anonymous)

Central Delaware Intergroup

P.O. Box 853 Dover, DE 19901 **24-hour Helpline: 302-736-1567**

AA Phone Numbers

 Southern Delaware
 302-856-6452

 Northern Delaware
 302-655-5113

 Easton, Maryland
 410-822-4226

http://www.cdiaa-de.org http://www.centraldelawareintergroupaa.org

Central Delaware Al-Anon 302-736-2836

Sunday 9:30 a.m. New Year Group Bayhealth O/D General Foods Conference Center 640 South State St., Dover	Monday 11:00 a.m. Milford Group C/D Avenue United Methodist Church 20 N. Church St, Milford *Use main entrance in parking lot*
4:00 p.m. Sol'o Por Hoy (Spanish) 327 Martin St., Dover 7:00 p.m. Smyrna 12 & 12 St. Peter's Church 22 Union St., Smyrna	11:30 a.m. Way to Recovery ST Kent County Counseling 1241 College Park, Dover
7:00 p.m. Today Group -Grange Hall O/D 911 South Governors Ave., Dover	12:00 p.m. A Way to Recovery O/L Connections Church 100 W Green St., Middletown
7:00 p.m. Townsend South Street Big Book C/BB Immanuel United Methodist 209 Main St., Townsend	6:00 p.m. Today Group -Grange Hall O/D 911 South Governors Ave., Dover Gratitude meeting
7:00 p.m. Back to Basics O/ST Christ Episcopal Church 200 Church St., Milford	7:00 p.m. Monday Night Big Book C/BB St. John's Lutheran Church 113 Lotus St., Dover
7:00 p.m. Harrington Group O/D St Stephen's Episcopal Church 190 Raughley Hill Rd.	7:00 p.m. Daily Reflections - Asbury Methodist O/D 200 Weiner St, Harrington
7:00 p.m. Thursday/Sunday Group O/D/HC Simpson Center 4 N Main St., Camden	7:00 p.m. Church Lane Group - As Bill Sees It O/HC/L Smyrna Church of Christ 1630 Joe Goldsborough Rd., Smyrna
8:30 p.m. Dover Group-Christ Church O/ST 501 S. State St. Dover	7:00 p.m. Milford Group C/D Avenue United Methodist Church 20 N. Church Ave, Milford *Use main entrance in parking lot* 2nd floor rear classroom - Room 206

8:00 p.m. Pass it on Group, Middletown 7:00 p.m. Daily Reflections St. Joseph Hall, 371 E. Main St O/D O/ST/12 Asbury Methodist 200 Weiner St, Harrington 8:00 p.m. Pass it on Monthly Group – Dover 7:00 p.m. Today Group -Grange Hall O/SP Presb Church (1st Monday of Month) O/D 911 South Governors Ave., Dover 54 South State St., Dover (1st Weds. of the month is a beginner's mtg.) Tuesday 6:30 am Tuesday at 6:30 AM 7:00 p.m. A Way to Recovery O/T/ST/L Bob Evans Restaurant (Rear) Connections Church C/D 200 Casa Drive Middletown 100 W Green St., Middletown 12:00 p.m. Today Group 7:00 p.m. Woman in Recovery - St. Anne's O/D/HC Whatcoat United Methodist Church O/D/HC 15 E. Green St., Middletown 16 N Main St. & Center St, Camden 7:00 p.m. Frog Town Group Trinity Methodist O/SP Church 6:30 p.m. Fresh & Free - Felton 4 Front St. Frederica O/B/D/HC United Methodist Church 101 East Main Street 7:00 p.m. Beginner's Meeting O/HC/B St. Peter's Church 6:30 p.m. New Freedom Group - Milford 22 North Union St., Smyrna O/D/HC Milford Senior Center 111 Park Ave., Milford 8:30 p.m. **Dover** Group – Christ Church O/SP 501 S. State St. 7:00 p.m. Fresh Air – Peoples Church – Dover O/D 46 S. Bradford St., Dover 8:30 p.m. Going To Any Length Serenity Place Women's 7:00 p.m. Smyrna A.A. - Church of Christ 327 Martin Street Dover O/D/HC 1630 Joe Goldsborough Rd. **Thursday** 11:00 a.m. Milford Group 8:00 p.m. Fountain Roc – St. Andrews Church C/ST Avenue United Methodist Church O/D/HC 425 N. DuPont Hwv 20 N. Church Ave., Milford (South of Big Lots), Dover *Use main entrance in parking lot* 8:00 p.m. Middletown - St. Anne's Church 11:30 a.m. Way to Recovery -Grange Hall C/T/ST 15 East Green Street. Middletown O/D 911 South Governors Ave... Dover 10:00 p.m. Going To Any Length Group O/D 327 Martin Street, Dover 12:00 p.m. Townsend South Street Big Book Young People's Meeting O/BB **Immanuel United Methodist** 209 Main St., Townsend Wednesday 6:15 p.m. Today Group -Grange Hall 7:00 a.m. Going to Any Length Group C/D 911 South Governors Ave. Dover 327 Martin Street, Dover Women's Meeting 11:30 a.m. Way to Recovery 6:30 p.m. New Freedom Group - Milford O/D Kent County Counseling O/D/HC Milford Senior Center 1241 College Park, Dover 111 Park Ave., Milford 1:00 p.m. Bridge to Life Group 7:00 p.m. Thursday/Sunday Group 756 Main St., Cheswold O/D O/ST/HC Simpson Center

4 N Main St. Camden

1156 South Governor's Ave. O/D 7:00 p.m. Smyrna A.A. - Church of Christ **Dover** O/D/HC 1630 Joe Goldsborough Rd. Saturday 8:00 p.m. Fountain Roc – St. Andrews Church O/ST/T/HC 425 N. DuPont Hwy Dover 9:00 a.m. A Way to Recovery – Connections (South of Burlington/Big Lots plaza) O/B Church 100 W. Green St., Middletown 8:00 p.m. Pass it on Group-Middletown O/BB St. Joseph Hall, 371 E. Main St. 9:30 a.m. Saturday Morning Attitude of Gratitude 9:00 p.m. Going to Any Length Group St. Paul's Episcopal Church O/D/HC O/D 327 Martin Street, Dover 10 Old North Rd., Camden Young People's Meeting 7:00 p.m. As Bill Sees It **Friday** O/D/HC St. Paul's Episcopal Church 10 Old North Rd., Camden 11:30 a.m. Way to Recovery -Grange Hall 911 South Governors Ave., 7:00 p.m. Church Lane Group **Dover** O/HC Smyrna - Church of Christ 1630 Joe Goldsborough Rd. 1:00 p.m. Bridge to Life Group O/ST 756 Main St, Cheswold 7:00 p.m. Milford Group C/BB Avenue United Methodist Church 5:35 p.m. Off the Hook (Bowers) 20 N. Church Ave.. Milford O/D Saxton United Methodist Church *Use main entrance in parking lot" 3241 Main St. Frederica 7:00 p.m. Room to Grow Group 7:00 p.m. There is a Solution Group O/D/HC St. Paul's Church OD/BB/HC St Paul's United Methodist Church 401 West St., Clayton 406 Main St., Odessa 7:00 p.m. Today Group -Grange Hall 7:30 p.m. Going to Any Length – Men's Group O/BB/12 911 South Governors Ave., Dover C/Men 327 Martin Street, Dover *Open BBk, 12&12 last Friday of Month* 9:00 p.m. Going to Any Length Group 7:00 p.m. Fresh Air – Peoples Church O/D 327 Martin Street. Dover 46 S. Bradford St., Dover **Meeting List Key** 7:00 p.m. Sol'o Por Dia (Spanish) В **Beginners Meeting** 327 Martin St., Dover O/D BB Big Book Meeting С Closed Meeting, Alcoholics Only 7:00 p.m. Milford Group D **Discussion Meeting** O/SP Avenue United Methodist Church G Gav 20 N. Church Ave, Milford HC Handicap Accessible *Use main entrance in parking lot* Literature Open Meeting, All Welcome O 8:00 p.m. Middletown - St. Anne's Church SP Speaker Meeting O/BB 15 East Green Street. ST Step Meeting Middletown

8:15 p.m. Going to Any Length Group

327 Martin Street, Dover

9:30 p.m. Today Group - Dover Church of Christ

C/BB

Tradition Meeting

Т

APPENDIX II: NA (Narcotics Anonymous)

Narcotics Anonymous

24 Hour Hotline for Narcotics Anonymous 1-800-317-3222

Narcotics Anonymous, World Services: https://www.na.org/ Narcotics Anonymous – Free State Region: https://freestatena.org/ Small Wonder Area of Narcotics Anonymous: https://www.smallwonderarea.org/

Key:

O = Open to the public C = Closed to public H = Handicap accessible

All meetings are non-smoking unless noted otherwise.

Sunday

Kent General Hospital (O) - 12:15 pm

640 S. State St., Dover *Discussion/Participation
Directions – come in back turn right 1st. Double door on right.

Christ Episcopal Church (C, H) - 7 pm

501 S. State St., Dover
*Discussion/Participation/Varies
Directions – At Water St.

Serenity Place (C, H) - 6 pm

327 Martin St., Dover
*Discussion/Participation
Directions – Office next to Serenity Place, small white brick building

Monday

People's Church (O) - 12:15 pm

46 S. Bradford St., Dover *Discussion/Participation Directions – Basement

People's Church (C) - 7 pm

46 S. Bradford St., Dover *Discussion/Participation Direction – Basement

Christ Episcopal Church (O) - 8 pm

501 S. State St., Dover
*Discussion/Participation/Varies
Directions – At Water St.

Immanuel Union United Methodist Church (C, H) – 6 pm

756 E. Main St., Cheswold

Tuesday

Mount Carmel Church of the Living (C, H) – 7:30 pm

117 North West St., Dover

Saint Andrew's Lutheran Church (O) – 12:15 pm

425 N. DuPont Highway, Dover *Discussion/Participation Directions – Route 13, next to Kmart

Kent County Counseling (C, H) – 6 pm

1241 College Park Dr., Dover
*Discussion/Participation
Directions – Big blue building in the College Business
Park

Saint Peter's Episcopal Church (C) - 7 pm

220 Old North Rd., Camden
*Discussion/Participation/Just For Today
Study/Varies/Speaker

Wednesday

Wesley United Methodist Church Education Building (C,H) – 7 pm

209 S. State St., Dover
*Discussion/Participation/Just For Today Study/ Step
Study

People's Church (O) - 12:15 pm

46 S. Bradford St., Dover *Discussion/Participation Directions - Basement

Thursday

Cornerstone Church (O) - 12:15 pm

761 S. Little Creek Rd., Dover
*Discussion/Participation/Women Literature Study
Directions – Across from Air Base Carpet

First Baptist Church (O) - 7 pm

301 Walker Rd., Dover
*Discussion/Participation/Just for Today Study

Friday

People's Church (O) - 12:15 pm

46 S. Bradford St., Dover *Discussion/Participation Directions – Basement

Saint Paul's Episcopal Church (O) - 8 pm

220 Old North Rd., Camden *Discussion/Participation/Just For Today Study

Saturday

Serenity Place (O) - 6 pm

327 Martin St., Dover
*Discussion/Participation/Women Literature Study
Directions – Office next to Serenity Place, small white
brick building

Saint Andrew's Lutheran Church (O) – 12:15 pm

425 N. DuPont Hwy, Dover *Discussion/Participation Directions – Route 13 next to K-Mart

Christ Memorial Church (C) - 8:30 pm

1160 E. Lebanon Rd., Dover *Basic Text, Candlelight, Step Study

Saint Paul's Episcopal Church (C, H) – 12:15 pm

220 Old North Rd., Camden
*Discussion/Participation/Just for Today
Study/Varies/Speaker

APPENDIX III: AL-Anon

Delaware Al-Anon Hotline: 1-866-460-4070 Al-Anon World Service: 1-888-425-2666

Delaware Al-Anon Information Services PO Box 221, Dover, DE 19903 http://www.delawarealanon.org

Key:

O = Open to the public
H = Handicap accessible
S = Step Meeting
T = Tradition Meeting
SP = Meeting is conducted in Spanish

Sunday

Hope for Today AFG (O) - 9:30 am

Bay Health Hospital General Foods Conference Room 2 640 S. State St., Dover

Monday

Let it Begin with Me AFG - 7 pm

Ashbury United Methodist Church 20-24 W. Mount Vernon St., Room 114, Smyrna

Tuesday

Joyous, Happy, and Free AFG - 6:00 pm

Wesley UMC 209 S. State St., Dover

Melody AFG (O) - 7 pm

St. John's Catholic Church 506 Seabury Ave & Church Pl., Milford

Middletown Al-Anon (O) - 8 pm

Connection Community Church 100 W. Green St., Middletown

Wednesday

Courage to Change AFG - 7 pm

Christ Church
S. State and Water Sts., Dover
*Park on Kerbin & Water, enter behind Fellowship Hall

Thursday

Dover Al-Anon Thursday Night Group (O, Disc) – 7:00 pm

Bay Health Hospital 640 S. State St., Cafeteria, Dover

Thursday CAL Al-Anon (Disc, O) - 7 pm

Reformation Lutheran Church 613 Lakeview Ave., Milford *Use door at parking lot

Friday

NA in Kent County

Saturday

Hope for Today - Saturday Morning - 9 am

Wesley Church Educational Center 30 Loockerman St., Dover